THE STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA

ORIGINAL

In The Court Of Appeals

APPEAL FROM RICHLAND COUNTY

Court of Common Pleas

Alison R. Lee, Circuit Court Judge

Appellant Case No: 2012-212896

RECEIVED

JUL 24 2014

SC Court of Appeals

Charles Taylor,

Appellant,

v.

Thomas Davis and
State Farm Mutual Automobile Insurance Company, Respondent,

FINAL BRIEF OF APPELLANT

Charles Taylor
Post Office Box 3652
Sumter, South Carolina 29151
(803) 883-7005
For the Appellant/Pro-Se

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

(In Brief); That on 12/14/07, Charles Taylor-Appellant, brought a \$10ML action, (later amended up to \$40ML), for gross negligence against Thomas Davis--Respondent, for damages he cause in a truck accident on 9/7/07. Taylor suffered severe personal injuries (R.p.6 L.8-9 & R.p.12 L.6-7) including lifetime disabling re-injured spinal cord surgery with more needed; samples, (R.p.82-83), among others, with medical bills from \$50,000.00 to \$60,000.00 & up to \$125,000.00, and past \$135,000.00 & continues & property damages of \$110,000.00 due to load of business materials just picked up in brand new automobile--all destroyed in the accident-(admitted)-(R.p.4 para 2) & all resulting from being rear ended / sandwiched-into another car-the Brown family---by a rental truck driven by underinsured at fault driver-Davis (R.p.4 para 2) which Truck Co. paid their limits \$25T to Taylor; who then turn to his under insurer-State Farm (R.p.68 3rd para) who paid Taylor \$25T of \$200T contract coverage & later renege on other \$175T; forcing further litigation and a potential ultimate judgment for up to the \$40ML against Davis with no indemnification, per State Farm, that he would have to pay himself beyond Appellant's remaining \$175T coverage w/ SF (Total);

¹ Note Respondent State Farm drumbeat complaint throughout its brief about not wanting to be held liable for final \$1,735,000 judgment they caused (R.p.74-75); & yet they never mention the untold offers to settle well within their—Appellant's policy limit and they refused each & every time to date (R.p.74-75). The problem is that they wanted their cake & eat it too. Appellant believes they can't have it both ways; but Respondent State Farm disagrees! They believe that they can!

That on 5/17/11, the Taylor v. Davis case was tried with; Taylor's own contract-non-party under insurer-state farm attorney defending Davis (R.p.11 top & bot. rt.) who could not attend. A jury found for Taylor, awarding him \$615.00 in total damages (R.p.21) wherein there were no attempt to refute-dispute Taylor losses, as such was so obvious, thoroughly & without question documented. On 6-8-11 Taylor filed an appeal (R.p.65) on among other appealable grounds, a juror acquaintance w/the defense wasn't reveal (R.p.70) until later after trial per the \$615 for all damages p.3 above.

RELEVANT FACTS

With appeal pending, the parties reached & filed a settlement agreement for \$1,735,000.00 of the \$40,000,000.00 that was being sought; in exchange to dismiss the appeal & no further litigation against (Davis). That pursuant to the agreement-(R.p.3-4) the appeals court dismissed the appeal by its order of 6/27/11 and **thus closed the case-**(R.p.2); remitting same to the Clerk of Court for Richland County (R.p.2). That Taylor later on 8/18/11 filed a motion (R.p.28) to the lower Court asking administratively per, (SCRCP 58b, the Appeals Court Order, & the agreement), to enter the final \$1,735,000.00 judgment-(R.p.4 #4d). The Lower Court entered final judgment pursuant to the agreement which, among other things, vacated, (R.p.4 L.4-d), the initial erroneous \$615.00 damages award, replacing it retroactively with final \$1,735,000.00 judgment (R.p.10 L.4-5) total damages to appellant in its 7/17/12 order-(R.p.10 L.4-5); & the lower Court then went beyond-to
rule as follows on p.5 B-1 thru B-6 on the next page—the reasons for this appeal.

² Note Importantly That: If Appellant could just sum it up---essentially---Respondent State Farm don't want to acknowledge---for obvious reasons---that the Final \$1,735,000.00 Judgment entered 7/17/13 (R.p.10 L.4-5) vacated & replaced (R.p.4 L.4d) the erroneous \$615.00 one (R.p.21).

ARGUMENT

(Discussion and Citation of Authority)

APPELLANT ARGUES: THAT ONCE NOTICE OF APPEAL WAS FILED 6/8/11,
(R.p.65) THE LOWER COURT HAD NO JURISDICTION-AUTHORITY (SCACR 205)

&/or erred; (as detailed per B-1 thru B-6 below):

(A-1). [Except of course so as to enter the Court Final \$1,735,000.00 Judgment--(R.p.2-5)
per Appeals Court Agreement Order of 6/27/11 (R.p.2-5); & per appellant motion
request 8/18/11 (R.p.28) to enter same per SCRCP 58-b (R.p.36 L.6-7)] otherwise erred;

(B-1). To rule, without motion (SCRCP 7-b) & (R.p.41-42 & R.p.6. L.1-5 & R.p.43-64) for non-party

State Farm (R.p.69) in the closed Appeals Court Case (R.p.2-5);

- b-2. That state farm had no other financial duty to appellant in the matter; (R. p. 9 L. 20);
(see R.p.2-5 & R.p.10 L.4-5 & R.p.87 top right L.5 thru item #1 therein the *contract*);
- b-3. That state farm obligations in the matter were exhausted w/initial \$615; (R.p.9 L.17);
(see R.p.70 & R.p.4 (4)d & R.p.2-5 & para. below bottom this page & R.p.10 L.4 thru p.11);
- b-4. That state farm not required to participate in the \$1,735,000.00 judgment; (R. p. 10);
(see R.p.4 (4)d & R.p.2-5 & para. bot. this pg & (R.p.68 3rd para. & R.p.87 right L.5- #1);
- b-5. That state farm attorney did not represent defendant Davis (R.p.9 L.13-14 & L.21-22);
(see R.p.11 Top & Bot Right & R.p.21 bottom right & R.p.43 under appearances & R.p.44 L.4&20)
- b-6. That appellant also alleges the lower court, even if it had authority to rule; erred to
rule as per above without even seeing--let alone reviewing, the subject under insured
contract provisions to see what they provided for between parties (R.p.87 right L.5 thru #1);

Further

& Another Main Point: Note with great emphasis that the initial \$615 award was vacated &
replace w/the \$1,735,000 (R.p.4 L.4d & R.p.10 L.4 thru R.p.11) & the b-3 ruling above should especially,
specifically & accordingly be [reversed] as prima facie contradictory err; [in that] the initial

award for all purposes was legally \$1,735,000.00--not the \$615--thus State Farm obligations per b-3 above, exhausts accordingly--(EMPHASIS!!)--to this most salient err by the Lower Court; even if it had Jurisdiction--Authority, to rule in the case and on the subject matter; & further reason to reverse (B-1 thru b-6 p.5 above) is because: The Lower Court rulings on these was done without motion (R.p.6 1st para. & R.p.41-42) of any party (SCRCP 7-b) & in a closed Appeals Court Case that had ended (R.p.2-5). Appellant's simple motion above A-1 p.5; required only simple entry per, SCRCP 58b (R.p.36 L.6-7); Because beyond that, Respondent State Farm-themselves had earlier caused the subject \$1,735,000.00 final judgment in several instances & in each & every instance could've avoided such if they wanted to beforehand; (R.p.74-75 & R.p.70).

³ Note w/great emphasis: (R.p.13 last para.) especially in that light & (R.p.76 Atty. Tyler's letter); and square these with Respondent State Farm's assertions in its brief; (p.1 2nd para. L.5 "After defense counsel withdrew from the case and while there was no counsel for Davis, Appellant then sought and was awarded an uncontested judgment against Davis for \$1,500,000.00 on June 19, 2009 based upon a Rule 68 SCRCP Offer of Judgment which had been accepted by Davis"); Again, see the just above referenced in the (R.p.76 & 13 bottom) for the truth of that matter & the deliberate falsehoods by Respondent State Farm so that they can prevail at whatever cost.

⁴ Also note w/same emphasis & light: Ref. the (R.p.71-73) Appellant's True Certified Correct Copies and (R.p.67) Respondent State Farm's altered copy and view same in light of their brief p.1 @ bottom & their brief p.4 2nd para. & @ bottom that page, as to the subject covenant and in light of the undisputed damages (R.p.76 & R.p.13 last para. & R.p.4--#2) suffered therein & p.3 above.

CONCLUSION

Accordingly-Appellant Seeks the Following Relief:

Declare the Lower Court Rulings;

(B-1 thru b-6)

p.5 above was done without

Jurisdiction-Authority &/or Erred

Pursuant to SCACR 205, SCRCP 58b, 7b,

& Any/All other Applicable Authorities

& accordingly should be