STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA
IN THE COURT OF APPEALS
APPEAL FROM RICHLAND COUNTY
COURT OF COMMON PLEAS

Alison R. Lee, Circuit Court Judge

Appellate Case No: 2012-212896

RECEIVED
OCT 15 2014
SC Court of Appeals

Charles Taylor,

Appellant

v.

Thomas Davis and State Farm Mutual
Automobile Insurance Company,

Respondents

FINAL BRIEF OF RESPONDENT
STATE FARM MUTUAL AUTOMOBILE INSURANCE COMPANY

JAMES B. LYBRAND, JR.
S.C. Bar #3453
McDONALD, McKENZIE, RUBIN,
MILLER AND LYBRAND, L.L.P.
POSTOFFICE BOX 58
1704 MAIN STREET, 2nd FLOOR
COLUMBIA, SOUTH CAROLINA 29202
(803) 252-0500
Attorney for Respondent State Farm Mutual
Automobile Insurance Company

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

On September 7, 2007 Appellant was involved in an automobile collision with Respondent Davis (hereinafter Davis) who was driving a vehicle owned by and rented from Budget Rental Company (Budget) which carried minimum limits liability coverage. On December 14, 2007 Appellant filed this negligence action against Davis seeking damages for personal injuries. Budget hired defense counsel (Matthew Tyler) to defend Davis. Davis' personal insurance carrier also hired defense counsel (Robert C. Brown) since the personal insurer had potential excess liability coverage. Respondent State Farm (hereinafter State Farm) is Appellant's insurance carrier and had underinsured (UIM) motorist coverage which would be applicable if Appellant's provable damages exceeded all available liability coverage.

On November 8, 2008 Budget paid its minimum limits coverage to Appellant in exchange for a Covenant Not to Execute protecting Davis from any further personal financial exposure for damages yet allowing Appellant to proceed with his claim against other applicable coverage.¹ Both defense attorneys who had appeared for Davis filed motions to be relieved as counsel. In March 2009 orders relieving attorneys Tyler and Brown were issued. After defense counsel withdrew from the case and while there was no counsel of record for Davis, Appellant sought and was awarded an uncontested judgment against Davis for \$1,500,000.00 on June 19, 2009 based upon a Rule 68 SCRCP Offer of Judgment which had been accepted by Davis.²

¹ After the initial Covenant Not to Execute was signed on November 8, 2008, an Amended Covenant Not to Execute was executed on November 12-13, 2008. Apparently the Amended Covenant was not prepared or approved by Davis' counsel. The Amended Covenant substantially modified the terms and conditions contained in the initial Covenant.

² This judgment was later set aside by Order of Judge Lee on January 20, 2010 on motion by State Farm (which was then involved in the defense as UIM carrier) on the basis that State Farm had not been served as UIM carrier at the time the judgment was entered and thus could not be bound by the judgment.

Appellant eventually served State Farm with copies of the Summons and Complaint on October 13, 2009. A timely Answer was filed by State Farm in accordance with §38-77-160. Subsequently, State Farm attempted to negotiate a settlement of Appellant's UIM claims and eventually paid Appellant \$25,000.00 in UIM benefits; however, the case remained unresolved.

On May 16, 2011 a jury trial was commenced before Judge Alison Lee in the Richland County Court of Common Pleas with Appellant representing himself. On May 17, 2011, the jury returned a verdict in favor of Appellant in the amount of \$615.00 actual damages. All of Appellant's post-trial motions were denied by Judge Lee. Because Appellant had previously been paid \$25,000 of liability coverage by Budget on behalf of Davis, State Farm received an offset for this payment which resulted in no UIM money being owed to Appellant from State Farm. Judge Lee ordered that the jury verdict/judgment had been fully paid and satisfied. (3rd Amended R., p.21)

Appellant filed a Notice of Intent to Appeal on or about June 8, 2011. While the appeal was pending and unbeknownst to State Farm, communications took place between Appellant and Davis which resulted in a purported "settlement agreement" being entered into by which Davis consented to the \$615.00 judgment being vacated and a new "consent judgment" of \$1,735,000.00 being entered in place of the jury verdict. Appellant and Davis then advised the Court of Appeals that the case was settled and an agreement to dismiss the appeal was filed on June 15, 2011. On June 27, 2011, the South Carolina Court of Appeals issued an Order dismissing the appeal under Rule 260(b) SCACR and the case was remitted to Richland County Court of Common Pleas.

Appellant subsequently filed motions in the lower court in August and November 2011 seeking to vacate the \$615.00 judgment, to enter a new judgment for \$1,735,000.00 (per Appellant's agreement with Davis) and to require State Farm to pay the higher judgment. A hearing was held

on Appellant's post-appeal motions by Judge Lee on May 7, 2012. Judge Lee issued her Order of July 17, 2012 allowing the new judgment to be entered against Davis personally but denying Appellant's motion seeking to require State Farm to pay the higher judgment. (3rd Amended R., pp.6-10). It is from this Order which Appellant filed his Notice of Intent to Appeal on September 1, 2012.

ARGUMENT

I. THE TRIAL JUDGE DID NOT ERR IN DENYING APPELLANT'S MOTION WHICH SOUGHT TO OBLIGATE RESPONDENT STATE FARM TO PAY AN "AMENDED JUDGMENT" ENTERED INTO BETWEEN APPELLANT AND RESPONDENT DAVIS

The crux of Appellant's argument is that State Farm, as UIM carrier, is obligated and bound by private agreements to which State Farm was never a party. It is well-settled in South Carolina that if a plaintiff chooses to settle with the at-fault party's insurer (here Budget), the UIM carrier has the right to assume control of the defense of the action for its benefit. Williams v Selective Insurance Co., 315 S.C. 532, 446 S.E.2d 402 (1994) State Farm was not the insurer for Davis and never purported to represent him in any way in this action. (3rd Amended R., pp. 22-25; pp. 26-27) State Farm defended this action pursuant to statutory rights afforded UIM carriers under §38-77-160, S.C. Code Ann which in pertinent part provides as follows:

*"The [UIM] insurer has the right to appear and defend in the name of the underinsured motorist **in any action which may affect its liability** and has 30 days after service of process on it in which to appear. . . . In the event the automobile insurer for the putative at-fault insured chooses to settle in part the claims against its insured by payment of its applicable liability limits on behalf of its insured, **the underinsured motorist carrier may assume control of the defense of action for its own benefit.**"*

In a letter to the Richland County Clerk of Court dated August 10, 2011, Davis advised that he had been “. . . *representing myself in this case from the beginning and have not authorized anyone else to represent, act nor speak for me in this case*” (3rd Amended R., p. 77) In that same communication Davis asserted his intent to “. . . *look out for and protect my own best interest as the defendant in this case. . . .*” Clearly Davis acknowledged that he had been and continued to represent himself and that no other party or entity was authorized to represent or speak on his behalf. Davis rejected any notion that State Farm was or could act on his behalf. Correspondingly, it is obvious that Davis could not speak for nor legally bind State Farm to any settlement agreement he negotiated with Appellant.

At no time before or after Appellant filed this action was State Farm ever privy to or involved in any discussions or settlement negotiations occurring between Appellant and Davis. One can only speculate but it appears extremely odd (and certainly against his financial best interest) for Davis to agree to relinquish favorable financial terms in the initial Covenant Not to Execute which limited his liability to \$25,000.00 and to later agree to a consent judgment for \$1,735,000.00 especially after Davis had been found liable to Appellant by a jury for a mere \$615.00.³ However, this is precisely what occurred according to a reading of the Covenants.

As UIM carrier State Farm cannot be bound by a purported settlement agreement or amended judgment entered into between Appellant and Davis either before or after the jury trial since such agreements obviously “affect its liability” as contemplated by §38-77-160. Any such private agreement or settlement between Appellant and Davis are unenforceable against State Farm. The jury

³ See language contained in the Amended Covenant Not to Execute which Davis later signed after the initial Covenant was executed along with Davis’ affidavit and Settlement Agreement. (3rd Amended R., p. 4, 31, pp. 66-67; 71-79)

verdict (not a private settlement agreement) determined what obligation, if any, State Farm owed Appellant after the setoff was applied by the trial judge. See, Broome v Watts, 319 S.C. 337, 461 S.E.2d 46 (1995) Nowhere in the “Binding Agreement” or in the affidavit of Davis (which purports to represent the “settlement”) is State Farm mentioned.

In Crawford v. Henderson, 356 S.C. 389, 589 S.E.2d 204 (Ct. App. 2003) this Court discussed the legal relationship between a UIM carrier, its attorney and an at-fault defendant. Crawford noted the following:

“Significantly, our Supreme Court has held that the rights of the UIM carrier [State Farm] and the named Respondent are not synonymous, and, in fact, may be conflicting . . . [A]lthough the UIM carrier “steps into the shoes” of the underinsured motorist, it has rights separate and distinct to those of the underinsured motorist.”

Although no attorney-client relationship exists between the UIM attorney and an at-fault defendant, this in no way restricted or prevented State Farm from defending this action to any extent which may affect its liability to Appellant. Crawford points out that the UIM carrier “steps into the shoes” of the underinsured motorist (Davis) but has “. . . rights separate and distinct from those of the underinsured motorist.” Appellant has never grasped or accepted this concept nor the statutory rights afforded State Farm but instead has attempted to engage in a series of communications, agreements and settlements directly with Davis with the intent to seek to bind or enforce these agreements against State Farm.

II. THE LOWER COURT DID HAVE JURISDICTION TO ISSUE ITS ORDER OF JULY 17, 2012 FOLLOWING REMITTUR OF THE ACTION BY THE SOUTH CAROLINA COURT OF APPEALS

Appellant challenges the lower court’s jurisdiction to rule upon Appellant’s post-appeal motions filed in August and November 2011. At the time of the lower court hearing on May 7, 2012,

this matter was no longer within the jurisdiction of the Court of Appeals which had dismissed the appeal and remitted the case to Richland County by Order dated June 27, 2011 (3rd Amended R., p. 2) As noted in Judge Lee's Order of July 17, 2012 the matter came before her upon motion by Appellant seeking, among other things, to have the lower court rule that State Farm was legally liable for payment of a "consent judgment" dated June 10, 2011 entered into between Appellant and Davis without the knowledge of or participation by State Farm. By filing his motions seeking relief in the lower court, Appellant acknowledged that the lower court did in fact have jurisdiction to rule on the relief he sought. It was not until after receiving an unfavorable decision did Appellant challenge the jurisdiction (as well as the ruling) of the very court from which he sought the relief. Appellant asserts that the lower court erred when it "went beyond" its authority in ruling that State Farm was not obligated to pay the new judgment. Appellant urges this position notwithstanding the express relief sought his motion in which he asked for "... a **(RULING)** as to the liability of state farm TO PAY THE WHOLE AMOUNT, PER THE SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT ATTACHED ..."(3rd Amended R.,p.4; pp.33-36)

State Farm concedes that its consent is not required to approve or validate any settlement agreement entered into privately and exclusively between Appellant and Davis; however, State Farm in its capacity as UIM carrier, cannot be bound by such settlement agreement to which it was not a party and which purports to hold State Farm liable for an amount which vastly exceeded the jury verdict. The lower court clearly had jurisdiction to rule on Appellant's motions and nothing in Rule 58(b) SCRPC nor substantive law supports Appellant's argument.

CONCLUSION

For the foregoing reasons State Farm respectfully submits that the Order of Judge Lee of July 17, 2012 be affirmed to the extent that it holds that State Farm is neither bound by nor legally obligated to pay the amended/alterd consent judgment of \$1,735,000.00 negotiated solely between Appellant and Davis. State Farm did not participate in such agreement and in accordance with §38-77-160, Appellant and Davis cannot enter into agreements which affect the rights or financial obligations of State Farm as the UIM carrier in this action.